
Corporate 
Performance Panel
Agenda

Monday, 13th January, 2020
at 6.00 pm

in the

Council Chamber
Town Hall
Saturday Market Place
King’s Lynn





King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, Norfolk, PE30 1EX
Telephone: 01553 616200
Fax: 01553 691663

19 December 2019

Dear Member

Corporate Performance Panel

You are invited to attend a meeting of the above-mentioned Panel which will be held 
on Monday, 13th January, 2020 at 6.00 pm in the Council Chamber - Town Hall, 
Saturday Market Place, King's Lynn PE30 5DQ to discuss the business shown 
below.

Yours sincerely 

Chief Executive

AGENDA

1.  Apologies  

2.  Minutes  (Pages 6 - 60)

To approve the minutes from the Corporate Performance Panel held on 26 
November 2019.

3.  Declarations of Interest  

Please indicate if there are any interests which should be declared.  A 
declaration of an interest should indicate the nature of the interest (if not 
already declared on the Register of Interests) and the agenda item to which it 
relates.  If a disclosable pecuniary interest is declared, the Member should 
withdraw from the room whilst the matter is discussed.

These declarations apply to all Members present, whether the Member is part 
of the meeting, attending to speak as a local Member on any item or simply 
observing the meeting from the public seating area.

4.  Urgent Business Under Standing Order 7  



To consider any business which, by reason of special circumstances, the 
Chairman proposed to accept as urgent under Section 100(b)(4)(b) of the 
Local Government Act 1972.

5.  Members Present Pursuant to Standing Order 34  

Members wishing to speak pursuant to Standing Order 34 should inform the 
Chair of their intention to do so and on what items they wish to be heard 
before a decision on that item is taken.

6.  Chair's Correspondence (if any)  

7.  Call In (if any)  

8.  Major Housing Update  

To receive an update from the Corporate Project Manager.

9.  Q2 2019/2020 Corporate Performance Monitoring Report  (Pages 61 - 71)

10.  Q2 2019/2020 Corporate Business Plan Monitoring Report  (Pages 72 - 
90)

11.  Cabinet Forward Decisions List  (Pages 91 - 94)

12.  Panel Work Programme  (Pages 95 - 99)

To consider the Panel’s Work Programme.

13.  Date of Next Meeting  

To note that the date of the next meeting of the Corporate Performance Panel 
will take place on 25 February 2020 at 6 pm in the Council Chamber, Town 
Hall, Saturday Market Place, King’s Lynn.

To:

Corporate Performance Panel: Councillors B Ayres, P Beal, J Collop, S Dark 
(Chair), A Dickinson, C Hudson, H Humphrey, C Manning, J Moriarty, C Rose and 
D Tyler

Portfolio Holders:
Councillor B Long, Leader
Councillor P Gidney, Project Delivery

Management Team Representative:
Becky Box, Assistant Director Central Services



Appropriate Officers: The following officers are invited to attend in respect of the 
Agenda item shown against their name

Item 8 Dale Gagen, Assistant Director Companies and Housing 
Delivery

Items 9 & 10 Becky Box, Assistant Director Central Services
Honor Howell, Assistant to the Chief Executive



492

BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING’S LYNN & WEST NORFOLK

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE PANEL

Minutes from the Meeting of the Corporate Performance Panel held on 
Tuesday, 26th November, 2019 at 6.00 pm in the Council Chamber - Town 

Hall, Saturday Market Place, King's Lynn PE30 5DQ

PRESENT: Councillor S Dark (Chair)
Councillors B Ayres, P Beal, J Collop, A Dickinson, M Howland, H Humphrey, 

A Kemp, C Manning, J Moriarty (Vice-Chair), C Rose, A Ryves and D Tyler

Portfolio Holders
Councillor R Blunt, Development
Councillor I Devereux, Environment
Councillor B Long, Leader

Officers:
Sharon Clifton, Communications Manager
Ged Greaves, Senior Policy and Performance Officer
Andrew Howell, ICT Web Team Manager
Honor Howell, Assistant Director - Central and Community Services
Joanne Stanton, Revenues and Benefits Manager

CP58  APOLOGIES 

There were no apologies for absence.

CP59  MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 21 October 2019 were agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair, subject to Councillor Rose be 
added to the list of apologies.

CP60  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Dark declared an interest in the Call in – Norfolk County 
Council Minerals and Waste Plan – Preferred Options as he had 
previous involvement in the silica sand project and led a successful 
campaign on behalf of several parishes which got 3400 acres of Area 
of Search removed.

Councillor Dark also declared an interest as a County Councillor and it 
was a Norfolk County Council policy.

Councillor Kemp declared an interest as a County Councillor and 
stated that she had been involved in stopping the incinerator in King’s 
Lynn.

6

Agenda Item 2



493

Councillor Long declared an interest as a County Councillor and Vice 
Chair of Norfolk County Council Planning Committee

Councillor Humphrey declared an interest as a County Councillor.

CP61  MEMBERS PRESENT PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER 34 

Councillors G Hipperson, M Howland, A Kemp, G Middleton, M de 
Whalley, A Ryves for Agenda item CP61 – Call in Norfolk County 
Council Minerals and Waste Local Plan Review – Preferred Options 
Consultation.

CP62  URGENT BUSINESS UNDER STANDING ORDER 7 

Called In Item – Norfolk County Council Minerals and Waste Local Plan 
review – Preferred Options Consultation

The Chair thanked the members of public for attending to observe the 
debate on the called in item and outlined the procedure that would be 
followed.  The proposer and supporters of the call in would be allocated 
five minutes each to address the Panel.  It was noted that a written 
submission had been received from Councillor Rust, which had been 
included in the Agenda.

The Chair invited Councillor Hipperson to present the call in of Cabinet 
Members Delegated Decision – Norfolk County Council Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan Review – Preferred Options Consultation.

Councillor Hipperson addressed the Panel and outlined the reasons for 
the call in of the Cabinet Decision as set out in Appendix 2 of the report 
and concluded by stating that Shouldham Warren should not be 
included in the allocation.

The Chair invited Councillor Howland to address the Panel.

Councillor Howland addressed the Panel and concurred with the 
comments made by Councillor Hipperson and added that he was 
supporting the call in as both Councillor Hipperson and himself share 
the same ward and had issues of wider and greater concern.  The 
Panel was informed that inclusion of the site would lead to potential 
increased traffic congestion and carbon footprint and was not 
acceptable.

The Chair invited Councillor de Whalley to address the Panel.

Councillor de Whalley addressed the Panel and outlined his reasons 
for the call in as set out in Appendix 2 making specific reference to 
Policies WP10 and  MW4b) and site SIL01.  In conclusion, Councillor 

7



494

de Whalley supported the exclusion of Shouldham Warrant in NCC’s 
allocation.

The Chair invited Councillor Kemp to address the Panel.

Councillor Kemp addressed the Panel and outlined her reasons for the 
call in as set out in Appendix 2.  Councillor Kemp referred to Policy !0 
in the preferred options plan at page 56 of the NCC document and 
highlighted that this placed West Norfolk at risk.  In conclusion, 
Councillor Kemp stated that the Borough Council’s response should 
state:

 That the plan must state the incineration as a form of residual 
waste facility was not acceptable in West Norfolk where 65,000 
residents voted against incineration in the Borough Poll.

 The borough council’s response does not mention material 
considerations of the risks relevant to West Norfolk of fracking 
and should say that the plan should exclude fracking certainly in 
West Norfolk.

After emphasing the above two comments, Councillor Kemp stated that 
if required she would attend the examination and advise the Inspector 
accordingly.

The Chair invited Councillor Ryves to address the Panel.

Councillor Ryves addressed the Panel and concurred with the 
comments made by Councillor Hipperson and outlined the reasons why 
he had called in the decision as set out in Appendix 2 make specific 
reference to Policies WP10, WP3, MW2 and MIN74, 77 and 206 and 
the threat posed to Shouldham Warren.

The Chair invited Councillor Middleton to address the Panel under 
Standing Order 34. 

Councillor Middleton declared an interest as a County Councillor and 
addressed the Panel, a summary of which is set out below:  

Councillor Middleton reported that he had undertaken research and 
had assisted Liz Truss MP in the Shouldham Warren campaign.  
Reference was made to Campaign against two silica sites (CATSS) 
and the part they had played.  Those present were given an overview 
and result of the first consultation and Councillor Middleton outlined the 
objections raised by the MOD on SIL02 due to the close proximity to 
RAF Marham and that it had been removed from the allocation.  
Councillor Middleton outlined the objections as to why Shouldham 
Warren should not be included as an allocation and made reference to 
the Motion adopted by Norfolk County Council on 25 November 2019.  
In conclusion, Councillor Middleton stated that the borough council 
should play a part in supporting the residents to exclude Shouldham 
Warren from being a site for sand extraction purposes.

8



495

The Chair invited the Portfolio Holder for Development, Councillor Blunt 
to address the Panel.

Councillor Blunt advised that the Planning Policy Manager was in 
attendance to answer any questions from the Panel.  He explained that 
he would place focus on the real issues that the majority of Councillors 
were concerned about, i.e. the inclusion of the area of search for silica 
sand extraction at Shouldham Warren.

Councillor Blunt explained that it was a Norfolk County Council Policy 
and reminded Councillors of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) Section 17 Facilitating the sustainable use of Minerals sub 
section (f) as set out below:

f) set out criteria or requirements to ensure that permitted and 
proposed operations do not have unacceptable adverse impacts on the 
natural and historic environment or human health, taking into account 
the cumulative effects of multiple impacts from individual sites and/or a 
number of sites in a locality.

Councillor Blunt reported that there was a need to identify designated 
areas of search.  The NPPF stated that mineral planning authorities 
should plan for the steady and adequate supply of minerals in one or 
more the following ways:  designating specific sites, designating a 
preferred area and designating areas of search.

Councillor Blunt advised that Norfolk County Council had to find sites 
and explained that on 25 November 2019, Norfolk County Council 
decided to adopt a motion to plant one million trees over the next four 
years across Norfolk.  So it appeared strange to consider on the one 
hand destroying wood land to facilitate Silica Sand Extraction and on 
the other to plant more trees.

The Panel was informed that in addition to the Norfolk County Council 
Silica sand requirement and shortfall document there was a strategic 
policy MP2:  Spatial Strategy for mineral extraction, an extract is set 
out below:

Policy MP2: Spatial Strategy for mineral extraction – STRATEGIC 
POLICY Within the resource areas identified on the key diagram, 
specific sites for sand and gravel or carstone extraction should be 
located within five miles of one of Norfolk’s urban areas or three miles 
of one of the main towns (detailed in the supporting text) and/or be 
well-related to one of Norfolk’s urban areas or main towns via 
appropriate transport infrastructure. Within the resource areas 
identified on the key diagram, specific sites or preferred areas for silica 
sand extraction should preferably be located where they are able to 
access the existing processing plant and railhead at Leziate via 
conveyor, pipeline or off-public highway routes. Areas of Search for 
silica sand extraction, of at least 20 hectares in size, will be defined 

9



496

from within the Leziate Beds silica sand resource, excluding the 
following planning constraints: a. Norfolk Coast Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty b. ancient woodland sites and 250 metres around them 
c. SSSIs and 250 metres around them d. 1km around The Wash SSSI 
e. The hydrological catchment around Roydon Common SSSI and 
Dersingham Bog SSSI f. Registered Common Land g. Designated 
heritage assets (Listed Buildings, Scheduled Monuments, registered 
historic parks and gardens, Conservation Areas) and 250 metres 
around each heritage asset h. Sensitive receptors to amenity impacts 
(residential dwellings, educational facilities, workplaces, healthcare and 
leisure facilities) and 250 metres around each sensitive receptor i. 
Agricultural land grades 1 and 2 j. Allocated, current and restored 
mineral extraction sites The designated areas of search for silica sand 
extraction will be those parts of the silica sand resource which are least 
constrained based on the above criteria; where a suitable future 
planning application for silica sand extraction may be approved.

Councillor Blunt suggested that in Section b – ancient woodland be 
amended to “woodland site” and explained that in order to achieve this 
he would instruct officers to create a section in the report supporting his 
argument and suggest that if the MP2 policy were amended as 
suggested taking into account the adoption of the motion to plant more 
trees in Norfolk that Shouldham Warren should not be included in the 
area search.

Councillor Blunt and officers responded to questions in relation to:

 Areas of search and an overview of the Norfolk County Council 
hierarchy in relation to the NPPF guidelines.

 The need for additional areas of search.
 Mechanism to bring forward areas of search.
 SILO1 and Roydon Common and measures put in the plan to 

safeguard such areas.
 MP2 Spatial Strategy for Mineral Extraction Sites.
 SIL02 and issues raised by Councillor Middleton relating to the 

areas of search, biodiversity, etc and explained that there were 
safeguards within the policy.

The Chair invited the Panel to debate the call in in accordance with the 
call in procedure set out in Standing Orders 15.33 and 15.34 and to 
consider the amendment to the Delegated Decision as outlined by 
Councillor Blunt.

Following a comment from a member of the Panel on a 
recommendation to request that the Plan be looked at again in light of 
the motion adopted by Norfolk County Council on 25 November 2019, 
Councillor Blunt expressed concern that this would delay the process 
and reiterated the proposal to amend the delegated decision as soon 
as possible, which would be subject to the call in procedure.  Councillor 
Humphrey sought clarification on the call in procedure.

10



497

It was clarified that if the Panel determined to uphold the call in in may 
then take one of three courses of action:

(a) report to Council, Cabinet or the relevant Portfolio Holder 
requesting that they amend or substitute the recommendations 
or decision; or

(b) if the issue is considered urgent or straightforward, formulate a 
counter-recommendation or amendment; or

(c) investigate the matter further at another meeting within thirty 
working days beginning with the day after the issue of the 
notification of the call in and then follow the same process as set 
out in paragraphs 5.2 and 5.3.

Councillor Moriarty proposed that the Panel uphold the call in and 
request that the Portfolio Holder for Development amend the delegated 
decision as outlined.  The proposal was seconded by Councillor Rose.  
The Panel then voted on the proposal which was carried.

The Portfolio Holder, Development undertook to look at other aspects 
of the call in in more detail after the meeting.

RESOLVED:  The Panel upheld the call in and requested that the 
Portfolio Holder for Development amend the delegated decision as 
outlined above, which would be subject to the call in process.

The Chair thanked the members of the public for attending to observe 
the debate of the call in and for Members’ input.  

The Panel adjourned at 6.57 pm and reconvened at 7.08 pm.

CP63  CHAIR'S CORRESPONDENCE 

There was no Chair’s correspondence.

CP64  ANNUAL COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE 

The Panel received an annual update from the Communications 
Manager, Assistant Director and ICT Web Manager (copy attached).

Officers present responded to questions and comments from the 
Panel, a summary of which is set out below.

In response to a question on Sail the Wash, the ICT Web Manager 
explained that the Sail the Wash website contained three areas:

 Marketing/promotion to encourage visitors to come and sail the 
wash.

 Economic aspect – to enable visitors to stay and boost the local 
economy.

 Specific technical pilot information including mapping.

11



498

Following questions on the number of visits to the website and how 
these were priorities, the ICT Web Manager explained that the number 
of visits were monitored and the items on the front page of the website 
could be re-ordered if required.

In response to a question on how payments could be made when the 
website was unable, the ICT Web Manager explained that other 
payment methods were available and a message had been published 
on the front page of the website.

Following a question on the Council’s Facebook account only to 
publicise events and not for news items, electoral registration 
purposes, the Communications Manager advised that the Council did 
use Facebook and social medial for a number of items and gave 
examples of news releases and consultation exercise, not just events 
and undertook to check this was correct and that notifications were 
received by those who signed up to receive alerts.

In response to a question regarding the web chat facility, the Assistant 
Director Central and Community Services confirmed that the customer 
was given the opportunity to be provided with a transcript of the 
conversation.  It was noted that the Borough Council retained a copy 
which could be attached to the customer’s records.

Following a question on the number of internal and external visitors to 
the website, the ICT Web Manager explained outlined an internal and 
external visit and added that the IP address was recorded.

In response to questions on the importance of maintaining face to face 
and telephone contact with customers when required, the Assistant 
Director, Central and Community Services explained that it was 
important to be able to use technology in the correct way but also to 
maintain the face to face contact with customers and provide a 
telephone facility.

Following questions on a pre-Council briefing when a mapping tool for 
maps was demonstrated, the ICT Web Manager explained that the 
council was complaint with usage limits and that the mapping system 
was a extract from the council’s GIS system which had a licensing 
agreement.

It was noted that reporting a fly tipping incident on line was now live 
and news releases had been issued and copied to parish councils.  
However, the Communications Manager undertook to liaise with the 
Assistant Customer Information Manager to provide further 
communications to parish councils in 2020.

The Communications Manager advised that the Borough Council 
worked with other partner agencies if it was necessary to target a 
specific audience.

12



499

The importance of communicating with the older population who did not 
necessarily access services digitally was highlighted.  The Assistant 
Director, Central and Community Services explained that customers 
who were not able to access services digitally would be offered an 
alternative or efforts would be made to encourage customers to use 
digital services.  The ICT Web Manager added that one of the council’s 
corporate priorities was channel shift which was the most appropriate 
channel for customers to access which was not necessarily via the 
website.

The Leader commented that the annual update highlighted the 
important work being undertaken within Communications, Customer 
Information Centre and the Web Team and added that credit be given 
to staff undertaking this work, specifically recognising the high external 
scores for the website and the excellent feedback received from 
customers.

The Chair thanked the officers for attending and providing an annual 
update.

RESOLVED:  The Panel noted the annual communications update and 
confirmed they wished to receive a further update in 2020.

CP65  COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT:  FINAL SCHEME FOR 2020/2021 

The Revenues and Benefits Manager presented the report and 
reminded the Panel that the council must review and agree its 
2020/2021 Council Tax Support (CTS) scheme for working age people 
by January 2020.  It must consult with the major preceptors then 
publish a draft CTS scheme for public consultation.  The draft CTS 
Scheme was agreed by delegated decision and the public consultation 
ran from 7 October 2019 to 15 November 2019.  The final CTS 
Scheme must then be agreed by full Council.

It was explained that the report detailed the results of the consultation 
and the recommended final CTS scheme for working age people for 
2020/2021.

The key issues were outlined as set out in the report.

In response to a question on the how the consultation exercise was 
undertaken, the Revenues and Benefits Manager explained that a 
number of channels were used and gave examples of a press release, 
twitter, facebook, local press, email to Parish Clerks and the Members’ 
Bulletin.

Councillor Moriarty commented that to encourage a higher response 
rate, could officer look at the form to ascertain if it was possible to 
make it mandatory to provide a comment to which the Revenues and 

13



500

Benefits Manager agreed to investigate.  It was highlighted that a paper 
copy could be requested and provided if required.

The Chair thanked the Revenues and Benefits Manager for attending 
and presenting the report.

RESOLVED:  The Panel agreed that the draft CTS scheme for 
2020/2021 which went to public consultation is recommended to 
Cabinet and Council as the final CTS scheme for 2020/2021.

CP66  CORPORATE BUSINESS PLAN 2020-2024 - CONSULTATION ON 
REVISED PLAN 

In presenting the report, the Senior Policy and Performance Officer 
reminded Members that the Corporate Business Plan set out the broad 
framework for the council’s work over the next four years.  Following 
the borough elections, it was timely to review the four year plan and the 
report sets out a summary of feedback and a final version of the 
proposed priorities and objectives for the panel to consider.

The key issues were outlined as set out below:

 Current Corporate Business Plan ended in 2019/20.
 Member induction identified a range of potential issues.
 Initial draft priorities and objectives developed for member 

consideration.
 Panels consulted in October cycle of meetings.
 Final version of the priorities for consideration ahead of approval 

by Cabinet.

The Chair invited questions from the Panel.

There were no questions from the Panel.

The Vice Chair thanked the Senior Policy and Performance Officer on 
the work undertaken to produce the Corporate Business Plan 2020 – 
2024 which was reiterated by the Chair.

RESOLVED:  The Panel endorsed the draft Corporate Business Plan 
in Appendix A.

CP67  CABINET FORWARD DECISIONS LIST 

The Panel noted the Cabinet Forward Decisions List.

Councillor Moriarty referred to the recent Chairs and Vice Chairs 
meeting when it had been raised that including information on the 

14



501

Forward Decision List so that it was clear which Panel an item should 
go to, should Members request that the item is considered by a Panel.  

CP68  PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 

The Panel identified the two items below to be included in the future 
work programme:

 Planning Sifting Panel (May 2020).
 Unreasonably Persistent Complaints Policy (November 2020).

CP69  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting of the Corporate Performance Panel will be held on 
13 January 2020 at 6 pm in the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Saturday 
Market Place, King’s Lynn.

The meeting closed at 8.20 pm

15



Annual Communications Update

Sharon Clifton – Communications Manager

Honor Howell – Assistant Director

Andrew Howell – Web Team Manager

502

M
inute Item

 C
P

64

16



Communications Update

Sharon Clifton – Communications Manager

503
17



New members, new team, new priorities

• New administration in May

• New Chief Executive

• New communications officer and senior designer

• Incorporation of CWA printroom into ours

• Emerging new corporate business plan

• Major funding streams

• Focus on green initiatives

50418



Media relations

• We have issued between 3 and 4 releases a week (163 in total)

• We have handled approximately 18 media enquiries each month – down 
from 20 per month last year, but the enquiries tend to be more complex

• Organised briefings, photo calls, launches and campaigns

505
19



Media relations (continued)

• This activity has resulted in 2204 items of coverage in printed media alone:

– 73% neutral (down from 74% last year)

– 15% positive (up from 10% last year)

– 9% negative (up from 3% last year)

– 3% uncategorised

• Events, public open space, civics and regeneration programmes account 
for the majority of positive stories

• Planning control (SW), public open space, accountancy (KLIC) and 
regeneration make up the majority of negative stories

50620



Media relations

507
21



Digital newsroom

50822



Media relations (continued)

• Feature articles are becoming a more effective tool than traditional releases

509
23



51024



511
25



51226



513
27



51428



515
29



51630



Social Media - Twitter

• Since opening our Twitter account in July 2010 we have gained 6668 
followers (up nearly 700 on last year) split evenly between male and female

• The Tweets we have posted in the past 12 months have gain 984,900.  
Impressions vary across the year – May 18 was 113.7k yet May 19 (elections) 
was 256k

• Top Tweets are on the next slide

517
31



51832



Social media - Facebook

• Created Borough Council News and Events Facebook page in June 2017

• We now have 2506 likes and 2614 followers – up by a thousand on the 
figures reported last year

• 73% of our followers are women.

• The most engaged followers are aged between 35-44 – 69% of whom are 
women

519
33



Social media – video content

• The number of people engaging with video and live streams has massively 
increased and is expected to rise even more in 2020.

• Video content frequently generates more engagement, especially as people 
watch content on their mobile devices. 

• We have been experimenting with increased video content since June on all 
social media channels, the news pages of the borough council website and 
Internal Affairs. 

• This year 32,700 minutes of our video content has been viewed via Facebook –
an increase of 239% on last year.  We will continue to introduce 
more video in 2020.

52034



Social media – Facebook: most viewed videos

521
35



Social media - Instagram

The borough council Instagram account went live in 
May 2019 and currently has 421 followers & we have 
posted 51 times.

68% put their location as 
King’s Lynn.
7% as Downham Market.
1% as Hunstanton

52236



Social media - SnapChat

• To increase awareness of who organises and pays for Fawkes in The Walks, 
we created a SnapChat filter.

• Over 21,000 viewed this.

523
37



Other activities

• Support for major projects through the development of comms plans, consultation materials and 
social media events/content:

– Shared housing 
– Vision KL
– Homelessness Strategy
– Lottery
– OPE
– Southern Seafront Hunstanton
– Sail the Wash
– Major Housing
– Future High Streets Fund
– Towns Fund, In Bloom
– Cinema at Corn Exchange
– West Winch Growth Area

52438



Other activities continued

• Comment pieces in business supplement

• Articles in LGC

• Involvement in county comms groups – County Lines, Domestic Abuse and 
Waste Partnership

525
39



Work plan

• Review of social media guidelines and delivery of social media training to 
members

• Communicating the new corporate business plan

• Supporting the elections 

• Working with the new chief executive and management team on key 
priorities set by the administration

• Focus on internal communications in line with IT roll out and new intranet

52640



Council Information Centre & Digital 

Services

Honor Howell – Assistant Director

527
41



Overview

• Promotion of digital services 

• Working with the Web Team to deliver integrated services

• Launch of web chat

• Technology changes

• Alive Leisure transfer

• Corporate complaints

• Payment systems

• Customer service

• Improving skill sets to manage complex and difficult conversations

52842



Digital Services

• Fly-tipping integrated e-form with location mapping, preventing repeat 
reports

• Food registration 

• MyAccount take up 

– 23,280

– 49% out of hours

– More people accessing forms create a MyAccount than continue as 
guest

529
43



Web chat

• Bespoke web chat system developed by the Web Team

• Customers are given the option to chat if they have been on the same 

page for 30 seconds or via the ‘Contact Us’ area

• Advisors are able to manage multiple ‘chats’ at the same time

53044



Web chat – take up

531
45



Customer satisfaction

• Customers are offered the option of leaving feedback at the end of the chat

• This is not mandatory

• Since April, 232 customers have provided feedback 

– 196 ***** (Excellent)
– 20 **** (Very good)
– 4 *** (Satisfied)
– 3 ** (Poor)
– 9 * (Very poor)

• 93% of customers rate the live chat service very good or excellent

53246



Technology changes

• Corporate email difficult to manage

• Have been working to remove the option as a form of contact

• Inbox removed 1st July 2019

• Changes to IVR queue options

• Resulted in a 33% reduction in calls to our switchboard

533
47



Payment systems

• Large project to make changes to payment systems and branding for the 

transfer of Alive Leisure to Alive West Norfolk

• Major upgrade to Pay360 in January 2020

• Looking at options for the Corn Exchange cinema payment services

53448



Complaints management

• Revised procedure to handle complaints rolled out across the 
authority

• Updated complaints policy 

• Training booked in

• More detailed management information on trends and reasons for 
complaints

535
49



Customer Services

• Continue to train staff to ‘multi-skill’ 

• Working collaboratively with the DWP and the CCG on the ground floor

• Extra training being given around handling complex and challenging 
conversations

• Working closely with Housing Needs and Housing Options to provide 
services

53650



Headlines

• More homes, more customers

• National factors – Welfare Reform, Universal Credit, Housing legislation all 
have an impact

• In the last year:

– 14% overall reduction in telephone calls

– 13% reduction in revenues calls

– 25% reduction in benefit calls

537
51



Corporate Web Team Update

Andrew Howell – Web Team Manager

53852



Overview of the Web Team

• We manage the Council’s digital estate

• Increased demand for digital services

• Over 900,000 website visits in 2018/19 with over 3 million page 
views

• Website visits up by 15% on the same period in 2018/19

• In top 5% of councils in Sitemorse rankings Q2 and Q3 2019

539
53



Increased digital take up – Submitted forms
Month 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

April 547 1,700 2,183 5,141

May 548 1,785 3,551 3,223

June 630 2,236 3,264 3,134

July 882 2,147 3,433 3,038

August 1,127 2,295 3,381 2,947

September 1,473 2,385 3,604 2,853

October 1,491 2,479 3,564 

November 1,507 2,485 1,436

December 1,207 1,866 2,612

January 1,846 3,158 2,786

February 1,760 2,295 2,475

March 2,513 2,876 3,041

Totals 15,531 27,707 35,330 20,336

% Change 78% increase 28% increase 5% increase

54054



New developments

• Website accessibility

• Technical support for projects 
such iDox integration for fly-
tipping reports

• New website for Alive West 
Norfolk including online 
membership sign-up and 
integration with Legend back 
office system

541
55



New developments – Website accessibility

• Strict legislation came into force 
in September 2019 about 
website accessibility:

� Ensure equal access for all

� Improves usability for all

� Meet our legal obligations

• Legally we need to be WCAG 2.1 
Double A compliant by 
September 2020. We are very 
close to being Triple A compliant.

54256



New developments – iDox integration 

• Pre-integration, CIC advisors had 
to update 3 systems when 
dealing with fly-tipping

• Used to take 30 minutes per 
query (approx. £6 each)

• Integration has taken that down 
to about 5 minutes per query 
(approx. £1 each)

• Cost saving of £6,500 in officer 
time based on average of 1,300 
fly-tipping reports per annum

543
57



Website governance – SiteImprove scores

2017

2019

54458



Future developments

• Further iDox integration work

• Website personalisation

• Investigate the use of AI and chat bot technology

• New websites for Sail the Wash and Careline

• Online bookings and website for new cinema

• New corporate intranet

545
59



Thank you

Any questions?54660



POLICY REVIEW AND DEVELOPMENT PANEL REPORT 
 

REPORT TO: Corporate Performance Panel 
DATE: 13 January 2020 
TITLE: Corporate Performance Monitoring Q2 2019/20 
TYPE OF REPORT: Monitoring 
PORTFOLIO(S): Performance 
REPORT AUTHOR: Honor Howell 
OPEN/EXEMPT Open WILL BE SUBJECT 

TO A FUTURE 
CABINET REPORT: 

No 

 
REPORT SUMMARY/COVER PAGE     
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT/SUMMARY: 
 
The corporate performance monitoring report is in place to monitor progress against agreed 
performance indicators for the year.  The report contains information on the corporate 
performance monitoring undertaken for Q2 2019/20. 
 
KEY ISSUES: 
 
Performance indicators for 2019/20 have been agreed by portfolio holders and executive 
directors as the key performance measures for the year; they cover all directorates.  The 
monitoring report highlights specific performance issues; where indicators have not met 
agreed targets they are drawn out into an action report, which provides additional detail on 
what actions are being taken to correct performance that has a variance to target.   
 
The Q2 2019/20 monitoring report shows that 33% of targets have been met, and 
performance has improved against target for 21 indicators.  All calculations and analysis in 
this report is based on 54 indicators. 
 
OPTIONS CONSIDERED: 
 
Not applicable. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
The Panel is asked to:  

i. Review the performance monitoring report  
ii. Agree the actions outlined in the action report. 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
To demonstrate that the council monitors and puts in place appropriate actions to correct 
performance that has a variance to the set target, to assist us in meeting our statutory duty 
to try and secure continuous improvement.     
 
 
  

61

Agenda Item 9



1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The council’s performance management framework includes quarterly monitoring 

and reporting of performance.  Each quarterly performance report is presented to the 
Corporate Performance Panel and is available to all councillors for information on the 
council’s intranet known as Insite. Environment and Community and Regeneration 
and Development Panels also receive reports for indicators within their remits.  

 
1.2 The indicators monitored are reported in full within the Q2 2019/20 corporate 

performance monitoring report. The report includes a summary of the performance 
levels achieved for the ‘status’ and ‘trend’ categories. It is hoped this provides 
members with a useful ‘snapshot’ at the start of the report. 

 
1.3 Following the collation of the full report, those indicators that have not met their target 

are drawn out into an action report.  This report is designed to focus attention on 
adverse performance.  In addition to the notes shown on the full report, senior 
managers provide information on the actions being taken to bring performance in line 
or reasons why this cannot happen. 

 
2. Monitoring report  
 

Key points from the corporate performance monitoring report – Q2 2019/20   
 

2.1 The following tables summarise the council’s current performance levels and 
includes a comparison to the previous four quarters. 

 
2.2 On 22 July 2019, the Corporate Performance Panel considered targets for 2019/20. 

The number of indicators which will be monitored for 2019/20 has increased to 54. 

A number of these indicators will either:-  

• be reported annually in the full year report; or  
• will be a new indicator and have no target whilst monitoring is undertaken 

during 2019/20 to enable sufficient data to be collected to assist in the setting 
of an appropriate target for 2020/21.    

 
  Q2 

2018/19 
Q3 

2018/19 
Q4 

2018/19 
Q1 

2019/20 
Q2 

2019/20 
Performance has 
improved   

 
17 

(34%) 
17 

(34%) 
20 

(40%) 
19 

(36%) 
21 

(39%) 
Performance has  
not improved   

 
10 

(20%) 
11 

(22%) 
15 

(30%) 
14 

(27%) 
14 

(26%) 
Performance has 
met and continues 
to meet target 

 
 
   

 

3 
(6%) 

2 
(4%) 

1 
(2%) 

1 
(2%) 

3 
(5%) 

Other: 
• new indicator 
• monitor only 

20 
(40%) 

20 
(40%) 

14 
(28%) 

18 
(35%) 

16 
(30%) 

Total number of 
indicators 

 50 50 50 52 54 

  
  

62



 
2.3 The percentage of indicators that have met the target for Q2 2019/20 has decreased 

by 21% compared to Q2 2018/19, and actions are in place for the 9 indicators which 
have not met the target as shown in the attached action report.   

 
  Q2 

2018/19 
Q3 

2018/19 
Q4 

2018/19 
Q1 

2019/20 
Q2 

2019/20 
Performance 
target met  

27 
(54%) 

25 
(50%) 

28 
(56%) 

23 
(44%) 

18 
(33%) 

Performance 
target not met  

 

 
3 

(6%) 
4 

(8%) 
10 

(20%) 
5 

(10%) 
9 

(17%) 
Other:  
• monitor only  

20 
(40%) 

21 
(42%) 

12 
(24%) 

24 
(46%) 

27 
(50%) 

Total number of 
indicators 50 50 50 52 54 

  
2.4 The following table provides an overview for Q2 2019/20 of the performance 

indicators grouped by Cabinet portfolio.   
 

Portfolio No of PIs Performance 
target met 

Performance 
target not met 

Other 

Leader  11 4 1 6 
Culture, Heritage & Health 1 0 0 1 
Project Delivery 5 0 0 5 
Development 8 7 0 1 
Environment 6 2 0 4 
Housing 15 1 6 8 
Commercial Services 3 3 0 0 
Business Development 5 2 2 1 
Total 54 19 9 26 

 
 
3. Issues for the panel to consider 
 
Members should review the attached analysis of the agreed performance indicators.  The 
action report should then be reviewed to ensure areas which have not met target are 
appropriately addressed. 
 
4. Corporate priorities 
 
Performance indicators are developed to monitor key activities many of which directly 
underpin the achievement of the council’s Corporate Business Plan. 
 
5. Financial implications 
 
None 
 
6. Any other implications/risks 
 
None 
 
7. Equal opportunity considerations 
    
None 
 
 

63



8. Consultation 
 
Management Team, senior managers and portfolio holders 
 
9. Conclusion 
 
Management Team actively monitors this information on a regular basis and uses the 
information highlighted on the action report to gain an understanding of the reasons for the 
levels of performance that have been reported.  Members should use the report to assess 
the actions outlined in the action report which the panel is asked to agree. 
  
10. Background papers 
 
Corporate Business Plan 2015/16 – 2019/20 

 

64



Performance Monitoring
Action Report Q2 2019-20

Performance Indicators Q2 2019-20

Ref 2019/20  
Target

Q2 2019/20 
cumulative 

performance

Q2 2019/20 
(Jul-Sept) 

performance
Status Notes Actions

LD8 57.00% 56.27% 27.57% The indicator is only marginally behind target, this could be due to minor 
fluctuations in the taxbase and customer payments.  

The indicator is monitored on a monthly basis by Management 
Team and will be reviewed regularly during Q3.

BD1 90.00% 89.91%
decreased by 
1.07% from      

Q1

The indicator is only marginally behind target and not currently a 
concern. 

Vacant properties are being advertised, although Brexit uncertainty 
may be impacting businesses taking risks such as relocating and 
committing to a lease lasting a number of years. 

BD3 95.00% 87.55%
increased by 
5.46% from      

Q1

The lease of 12 Norfolk Street is due to complete in Q3 with the opening 
of the Sue Ryder shop.

On completion of 12 Norfolk Street this performance indicator will 
achieve the target. 

HS1 100.00% 98.00% 98.00%
In Q2 the council received an increased amount of requests for new 
HMO licence applications.  However, due to capacity issues the target 
was not met.

The 2% slippage recorded in Q2 will impact on the 2019/20 
cumulative figure. This indicator will not achieve the annual target 
of 100%. In Q2 the council received an increased amount of 
requests for new HMO licence applications.  However, due to 
capacity issues the target was not met. Permanent recruitment is 
ongoing. Demand is currently being met through the use of 
temporary agency resources. The service is prioritising 
assessments of mandatory licensable HMOs via a risk based 
approach.

HS10 90.00% 86.60% 87.21%
The 2019-20 cumulative performance figure remains below target, a 
breakdown of the performance data for the past 6 months:-
Apr 74.3 May 91.0 Jun 93.1 Jul 91.0 Aug 81.8 Sept 88.4.

Monthly monitoring by Management Team is in place for this 
indicator.

% of rent achievable on 
retail/general units

This report highlights indicators that have not met target for Q2 2019-20 and is a supporting document to the Performance Monitoring Q2 2019-20 report.  Comments / actions are recorded to help 
evidence performance management undertaken by the Council.

Status This indicator has not met the target.

Name

% of HMO’s inspected 
in accordance with the 
programmed inspection 
regime  

% of Careline alarms 
installed within 10 days 
from date of enquiry

% of rent achievable on 
industrial estates

% of Council Tax 
collected against target

65



Performance Monitoring
Action Report Q2 2019-20

Ref 2019/20  
Target

Q2 2019/20 
cumulative 

performance

Q2 2019/20 
(Jul-Sept) 

performance
Status Notes Actions

HS11 30 51 57

HS12 25 30 30

HS13 30 32 33

HS15 11 14 14

A detailed monitoring exercise of weekly performance levels has been 
carried out during August/September.  

Week                 Number         Days to      Processed 
Ending             processed       process       in 14 days
01/09/2019            832                 6                 92%
08/09/2019            943                 9                 89%
15/09/2019            941                 9                 86%
22/09/2019         1,056                 7                 94%
29/09/2019         1,000                 8                 90%

The indicator is monitored against an annual target however, 
during the year there will be peaks and troughs in performance 
levels and the service manager anticipates that the target will be 
met at year end.

Name

These are ambitious targets that should be achievable over time, 
measuring the client journey from first contact to completion of the 
adaptation is in line with the County IHAT measures and means that as 
a district we can compare our delivery against other IHAT District teams. 
The challenges in achieving these targets are as a result of not just a 
long standing waiting list that Care and Repair have now cleared but 
also other factors as follows:

- A high demand on the service - there have been over 100 new 
adaptation enquiries in one month, these cases are now being triaged 
and scheduled an appointment within 4-6 weeks of the enquiry.
- Staffing resources have not been increased significantly in line with the 
demand for the service and therefore, there is a strain on the team to 
deliver a quality service within the funding and staffing resources 
available.

There are a number of factors outside of the team’s control that affect 
the length of time that a case can take to complete:-– 
- if a client goes into hospital or respite care during the process of the 
grant application this will impact on the timescales 
- if the client puts the work on hold because they are anxious about the 
disruption all these factors can negatively impact on the timescales 
- if the client has a financial contribution towards the grant and they are 
unable or unwilling to pay the contribution the team have to seek charity 
funding and this can take time to source.

An update covering these indicators will be given by the Repairs 
and Adaptations Manager to Environment and Community Panel 
on 21 January 2019.

Until the waiting list cases have all been completed, this level of 
performance will continue for the remainder of 2019/20.

No of days to process 
changes of 
circumstances 

Time taken (in weeks) 
from first contact to 
completion of work on 
Disabled Facilities Grant

Time taken (in weeks) 
from first contact to 
completion of work on 
Adapt grant means-
tested cases with a 
value under £12,000 

Time taken (in weeks) 
from first contact to 
completion of work on 
Adapt passported cases 
with a value under 
£6,000

66



Performance Monitoring Q2 2019-20  

17% 33% New 2019-20 indicator 26%

39% The value of this indicator has worsened 26% The value of this indicator has not changed 5%

Actions being taken on indicators that have not met target are outlined on the accompanying Action Report

Leader
PI Ref 
Guide 
page

Link to 
Corporate 

Priority

2018/19
cumulative

performance

Q2 2019/20
target 

Q2 2019/20
cumulative 

performance 

Q2 2019/20
status

Versus 
this time 
last year

4 1 9.43% _ 2.87% _

4 1 7.28 3.75 3.55

4 1 50% _ 40% _

5 1 98.8% 100% 100.0%

5 1 104.0% 90% _ _ _

5 1 95% 94% 98%

6 1 81% 81% 88% _

6 1 97.71% 57% 56.27%

6 1 99.03% 57% 59.72%

7 1 73404 _ 73655 _

7 1 51728 _ 52043 _

Culture, Heritage, Health
PI Ref 
Guide 
page

Link to 
Corporate 

Priority

2018/19
cumulative

performance

Q2 2019/20
target 

Q2 2019/20
cumulative 

performance 

Q2 2019/20
status

Versus 
this time 
last year

8 4 66.4% _ 71.0% _

Status

Trends

Indicator has not met the target

The value of this indicator has improved

Name Good 
Performance

Ref

LD4

Aim to maximise

LD5

CH1
% of residents who take part in sport and physical 
activity as measured by the Sport England Active 
Lives Survey

LD1

Aim to maximise

Aim to maximise

Aim to maximise

Aim to maximise

% of capital receipts where legal instructions have 
been issued

% of supplier invoices paid within 30 days

LD7 % of local supplier invoices paid within 10 days

LD10

% of Business Rates collected against target

% of Council Tax collected against target

LD11 Base for Council Tax setting purposes - Band D 
equivalent

No of residential dwellings subject to Council Tax

Ref Name

Indicator has met target

Monitor only

Aim to minimise

Good 
Performance

Aim to minimise

Aim to maximise

Aim to minimise

Aim to maximise

Aim to maximise

Monitor only

Monitor only

Note

Monitor only

Staff turnover

Average no of working days lost due to sickness 
absence per FTE employee

% of short term sickness

LD8

LD9

LD6

LD2

LD3

% of eligible employees in post on 1st April 
receiving a performance appraisal

Note

The Active Lives Adult Survey is published twice a year by Sport 
England. It measures the activity levels of those aged 16 and 
above. The data is released in March and October each year. The 
Active Lives Adult Survey is sent out to a randomly selected 
sample of households across England. Breckland 72%, Broadland 
77.1%, Great Yarmouth 70.3%, North Norfolk 76.7%, Norwich 
82.4% and South Norfolk 76.3%. In Oct 2018, the borough's level 
was 74.5%.

The indicator is only marginally behind target, this could be due to 
minor fluctuations in the taxbase and customer payments.  

Aim to maximise

Annual monitoring

Monitor only

67



Performance Monitoring Q2 2019-20  

Project Delivery
PI Ref 
Guide 
page

Link to 
Corporate 

Priority

2018/19
cumulative

performance

2019/20
annual
target 

Q2 2019/20
cumulative 

performance 

Q2 2019/20
status

Versus 
this time 
last year

9 2 20 24 10 _

9 2 71 54 21 _

9 2 13 67 28 _

10 2 _ 54 54 _

10 2 _ 3 0 _

Development
PI Ref 
Guide 
page

Link to 
Corporate 

Priority

2018/19
cumulative

performance

Q2 2019/20
target 

Q2 2019/20
cumulative 

performance 

Q2 2019/20
status

Versus 
this time 
last year

11 2 92.0% 60.0% 94.0%

11 2 93.0% 70.0% 94.0%

11 2 2.7% 10.0% 3.3%

12 2 0.9% 10.0% 0.9%

12 2 100% 95% 100%

12 2 6.62% 10.00% 10.00%

13 2 29.03% _ 31.57% _

13 2 0.00% 35.00% 33.33%

% of decisions on applications for major 
development that have been overturned at appeal, 
measured against total number of major 
applications determined

DV7

DV8

DV5

DV6

No of residential house sales completed - Marsh 
Lane Aim to maximise

Good 
Performance

Aim to minimise

Ref

Aim to maximise

Aim to maximise

 

Aim to maximise

Processing of non-major development applications Aim to maximise

Aim to minimise

Aim to minimise

Aim to maximise

% of refused planning applications then 
appealed/lodged

% of planning applications refused 

Good 
Performance

Aim to minimise

Aim to maximise

No of residential house sales completed - NORA

No of residential house sales completed - Lynnsport 
4/5

% of decisions on applications for non-major 
development that have been overturned at appeal, 
measured against total number of non-major 
applications determined

% of planning appeals allowed 

No of residential house sales completed - Lynnsport 
3

Name

% of standard land charges searches carried out 
within 10 working days

Processing of major development applications

PD4 No of residential houses commenced - Lynnsport 3

PD2

DV3

DV4

Name

PD3

PD5

PD1

Ref

DV1

DV2

Note

Note

Monitor only

Aim to maximise

Aim to minimise

68



Performance Monitoring Q2 2019-20  

Environment
PI Ref 
Guide 
page

Link to 
Corporate 

Priority

2018/19
cumulative

performance

Q2 2019/20
target 

Q2 2019/20
cumulative 

performance 

Q2 2019/20
status

Versus 
this time 
last year

14 3 1.0 1.0 0.9

14 3 1,460 _ 650 _

14 3 28,068 28,000 15,274 _

15 3 26,667 27,000 25,226 _

15 3 96.3% 95.0% 96.9%

15 3 _ 80.0% _ _

Housing
PI Ref 
Guide 
page

Link to 
Corporate 

Priority

2018/19
cumulative

performance

Q2 2019/20
target 

Q2 2019/20
cumulative 

performance 

Q2 2019/20
status

Versus 
this time 
last year

16 2 _ 100% 98%

16 2 £45,648 _ £20,815 _

16 2 _ _ 260 _

17 2 489 _ 16 _

17 2 _ _ 21 _

17 2 _ _ 27.0% _

18 2 5 _ 22 _

18 2 55 _ 35 _

HS5

EV3

EV4

Aim to maximise

Ref

Spend on bed and breakfast accommodation  
(gross)

Total of waste recycled and composted (tonnage)

% of HMO’s inspected in accordance with the 
programmed inspection regime  Aim to maximiseHS1

Aim to minimiseEV2

Aim to minimise

Note

Aim to minimise

Aim to minimise

No of brown bins in use for composting

Aim to maximise

Good 
Performance

Average response time for removal of fly-tips (days)

Ref

Annual monitoring

Good 
Performance

Aim to maximise

Aim to minimise

EV5 Premises rated 3 or above in accordance with the 
food hygiene rating system

% of food interventions achieved 

No of households accepted as homeless with a 
need to be rehoused (Full housing duty)

Name

No of households prevented from becoming 
homeless for a minimum of 6 months 

No of households with a homelessness declaration 

No of rough sleepers and those at significant risk

HS8

HS7

No in temporary accommodation - bed and 
breakfast

HS6

HS2

EV6

% of cases who were offered a prevention and relief  
duty who remain homeless and are owed no further 
duty.

Name

No of fly tipping incidents recorded

EV1

HS4

HS3

Q1 - 6

Aim to minimise

Indicator name has been updated as the data is collected from a 
number of different sources including housing support providers, 
hostel providers, and the rough sleeper outreach team.  Figure is 
a snapshot as at 30/09/2019

Note

Aim to minimise

Monitor only

Q1 - 14

Q1 - 122

Q1 - £6,975

Aim to minimise

Q1 has been re-calculated to 35% not 41.8% as previously 
stated.

Q1 - 13

In Q2 the council received an increased amount of requests for 
new HMO licence applications.  However, due to capacity issues 
the target was not met.

Aim to maximise

Aim to maximise
Q1  7,647  Q2  15,274
This includes food waste. Under the new waste contract, food 
waste is only collected for King's Lynn and West Norfolk. 

Q1  25,214  Q2  25,226 

69



Performance Monitoring Q2 2019-20  

PI Ref 
Guide 
page

Link to 
Corporate 

Priority

2018/19
cumulative

performance

Q2 2019/20
target 

Q2 2019/20
cumulative 

performance 

Q2 2019/20
status

Versus 
this time 
last year

18 2 464 _ 272 _

19 6 93.8% 90.0% 86.6%

19 6 28.0 30.0 51.0

19 6 18.0 25.0 30.0

20 6 10.4 30.0 32.0

20 1 14 17 14

20 1 10 11 14

Commercial Services
PI Ref 
Guide 
Page

Link to 
Corporate 

Priority

2018/19
cumulative

performance

Q2 2019/20
target 

Q2 2019/20
cumulative 

performance 

Q2 2019/20
status

Versus 
this time 
last year

21 1 96% 95% 96%

21 1 93% 90% 96%

21 1 14.00% 10.00% 5.00% _

Ref Name Good 
Performance

HS12

CS2 % of customer satisfaction with digital services 
(website, webchat, e-forms, MyAccount)

HS10

HS13

Name

Aim to maximise

Aim to maximise

% of Careline alarms installed within 10 days from 
date of enquiry

Time taken (in weeks) from first contact to 
completion of work on Adapt passported cases with 
a value under £6,000

Aim to minimiseNo of days to process changes of circumstances 

Time taken (in weeks) from first contact to 
completion of work on Adapt grant means-tested 
cases with a value under £12,000 

Time taken (in weeks) from first contact to 
completion of work on Disabled Facilities Grant 

HS15

No of days to process new benefit claims 

Aim to maximise

Aim to minimise

Aim to minimise

Aim to maximise

CS3

HS9 No of social housing lettings - against a baseline

Reduction in the percentage of telephone calls for 
core services where digital services are in place

Ref

HS14

Aim to maximise Aim to achieve a 10% reduction by 31/03/2020

The Q2 2019-20 cumulative performance figure remains below 
target, a breakdown of the performance data for the past 6 
months:-  Apr 74.3 May 91.0 Jun 93.1 Jul 91.0 Aug 81.8 Sept 
88.4.

Note

Aim to minimise

Good 
Performance Note

Aim to minimise

CS1 % of freedom of information requests given final 
response within deadline

HS11

A detailed monitoring exercise of weekly performance levels has 
been carried out during August/September.  

Week               Number          Days to       Processed 
Ending          processed       process         in 14 days
01/09/2019            832                   6                  92%
08/09/2019           943                   9                   89%
15/09/2019            941                   9                   86%
22/09/2019         1,056                   7                  94%
29/09/2019         1,000                   8                  90%

Q1 - 144

See notes in Action report

70



Performance Monitoring Q2 2019-20  

Business Development
PI Ref 
Guide 
page

Link to 
Corporate 

Priority

2018/19
cumulative

performance

Q2 2019/20
target 

Q2 2019/20
cumulative 

performance 

Q2 2019/20
status

Versus 
this time 
last year

22 1 93.11% 90.00% 89.91%

22 1 3.97% 4.00% 2.21%

22 1 79.68% 95.00% 87.55%

23 1 2.43% 4.00% 1.07%

23 1 £3,162,615 _ _ _ _

Aim to minimise

Aim to maximise

Aim to maximise

Aim to minimise

The lease of 12 Norfolk Street is due to complete in Q3 with the 
opening of the Sue Ryder shop.

The indicator is only marginally behind target and not currently a 
concern. 

Annual monitoringAim to maximiseBD5 Income from business rates for Renewable Energy 
projects

BD2

% of rent achievable on retail/general unitsBD3

% of rent arrears on industrial estates

% of rent achievable on industrial estates

BD4 % of rent arrears on retail/general units

BD1

Ref Name Good 
Performance Note

71



 POLICY REVIEW AND DEVELOPMENT PANEL REPORT 
 

REPORT TO: Corporate Performance Panel 
DATE: 13 January 2020 
TITLE: Q2 2019/20 Corporate Business Plan Monitoring Report 
TYPE OF REPORT: Monitoring 
PORTFOLIO(S): Performance 
REPORT AUTHOR: Honor Howell 
OPEN/EXEMPT Open WILL BE SUBJECT 

TO A FUTURE 
CABINET REPORT: 

No 

 
REPORT SUMMARY/COVER PAGE    
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT/SUMMARY: 
 
The Corporate Business Plan monitoring report has been developed to demonstrate 
progress against the Council’s Corporate Business Plan.  This report contains information on 
the progress made on the key actions up to the end of Quarter 2 2019/20. 
 
KEY ISSUES: 
 
There are currently 54 agreed actions being undertaken to progress the Council’s Corporate 
Business Plan.  The Q2 2019/20 monitoring report indicates that 48 of the actions are 
progressing well 4 actions have been completed, and due to changes to proposals 2 actions 
will be removed from the monitoring report to be replaced with new key actions in the next 
update. 
  
35 actions have been completed from Q4 2015/16 to Q2 2019/20. 
 
OPTIONS CONSIDERED: 
 
N/A monitoring report 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
The Panel is asked to review the Q2 2019/20 Corporate Business Plan monitoring report 
and identify where further information/clarification on progress is required. 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
The Corporate Business Plan sets out the broad framework for the Council’s work for the 
period 2015/16 to 2019/20.  Members should use the information within the monitoring report 
to review progress on agreed actions and satisfy themselves that performance is at an 
acceptable level.  Where progress is behind schedule Members can seek additional 
information as to the reason(s) that work is behind schedule. 
 
 
  

72

Agenda Item 10



1.  Introduction 

1.1 The Council’s new Corporate Business Plan was adopted in January 2016. It sets out 
the broad framework for the Council’s work for the period 2015-2019. 

 
1.2 The six priority areas outlined in the Corporate Business Plan, underpinned by 18 

corporate objectives, are: 
• provide important local services within our available resources 
• drive local economic and housing growth 
• work with communities to ensure they remain clean and safe 
• celebrate our local heritage and culture 
• stand up for local interests in our region 
• work with our partners on important services for the borough 

 
1.3 The monitoring report is collated quarterly, and brought to the Corporate 

Performance Panel following the end of Quarters 2 and 4.  Reports set out progress 
made against key actions – including details of any completed or new key actions.  
All quarterly reports are available to Members on the Council’s Intranet, Insite. 

 
1.4 The report contains an Executive Summary which provides an overview of progress 

against the six priorities.  The information in the body of the report provides further 
detail.   

 
1.5 Members should note that completed key actions will be removed from the report and 

added to a separate archive report, Completed Key Actions report 2016-2020, 
available on Insite.   

 
 
2.  Monitoring Report  
 
2.1 The Q2 2019/20 report details progress on agreed actions as at the end of 

September 2019.  It is possible Members may be aware of more up-to-date progress 
with some actions – this will be captured in the Q3 2019/20 report (which will be 
available on Insite).  

 
2.2 The Executive Summary for the Q2 2019/20 monitoring report indicates that 89% of 

the actions are progressing well and 7% of actions have been completed. 
 
2.3 The chart below highlights the number of current key actions which underpin each 

corporate priority.  Over the next four years the proportions of the chart will change at 
the end of each quarter, as key actions are completed or new key actions are added 
in reaction to specific corporate issues or priority areas.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

73



2.4 Current key actions per corporate priority at the conclusion of Q2 2019/20   
                    

  
 

 
      
 
 
2.5 Breakdown of completed key actions by priority 
 

 
 

Provide important 
local services within 

our available 
resources Drive local 

economic and 
housing growth 

Work with our 
communities to 

ensure they remain 
clean and safe 

Celebrate our local 
heritage and culture 

Stand up for local 
interests within our 

region 

Work with our 
partners on 

important services 
for the borough 

Completed actions 
6 

16 

  9 

4 

35 

5 
  6 

  5 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

Provide
important local
services within
our available

resources

Drive local
economic and

housing growth

Work with our
communities to

ensure they
remain clean

and safe

Celebrate our
local heritage
and culture

Stand up for
local interests

within our
region

Work with our
partners on
important

services for the
borough

7 
 

(See table below) 

74



3. Issues for the Panel to Consider 
 
Members should review the full Corporate Business Plan monitoring report covering Q2 
2019/20 (attached) noting the ‘status’ given for each key action, The ‘comments’ column 
provides details of specific actions which have been progressed during Q2 to enable 
Members to assess the work undertaken against each action during the specified quarter. 
 
4. Corporate Priorities 
 
This report provides evidence of progress towards the achievement of the Council’s 
corporate priorities. 

 
5. Financial Implications 
 
None 
 
6. Any other Implications/Risks 
     
None 
 
7. Equal Opportunity Considerations 
 
None 
 
8. Consultation 
 
Management Team, senior officers and Portfolio Holder 
 
9.   Conclusion 
 
Members should use the Q2 Corporate Business Plan monitoring report to assess 
performance during the period July to September 2019. 
 
10. Background Papers 
 
Corporate Business Plan 2015/16 – 2019/20 

75



  

 

Corporate Business Plan  
Monitoring Report 
 
Detailing progress against the Corporate Business Plan 
 
Covering Quarter 2 2015/16 
 

Detailing progress against the  
2015-2020 Corporate Business Plan  

Corporate Business Plan Monitoring Report 
 
Covering Q2 2019/20 

76



Executive summary by Corporate Business Plan outcomes 
 

 Progress and performance overall is behind 
schedule 
 

 Progress and performance is within 
acceptable variance 

 Progress and performance is on 
track 

 

1. Provide important local services within our 
available resources 
 
Of the 7 actions in place for this priority, 1 action has 
been completed and the remaining 6 actions are 
progressing well. 

  4. Celebrate our local heritage and culture 
 
 
All 9 actions in place for this priority are progressing well. 

 

  

 

2. Drive local economic and housing growth 
 
Of the 21 actions in place for this priority, 2 actions 
have been cancelled, 3 actions have been completed 
and the remaining 16 actions are progressing well. 

  5. Stand up for local interests within our region 
 
All 7 actions in place for this priority are progressing well. 

 

  

 

3. Work with our communities to ensure they 
remain clean and safe  
 
All 5 actions for this priority are progressing well. 

  6. Work with our partners on important services for 
the borough 
 
All 5 actions in place for this priority are progressing well.  

 

  
 

Overall progress on Corporate Business Plan actions as at 30th September 2019 is deemed to be on track. 
 
 

R A 

G 

G 

G 

G 

G 

G G 

77



 

Corporate Performance Indicators 
The following corporate performance indicators have been introduced to capture key performance measures for each of the Council’s corporate 
priorities. 
 

Priority Indicator Q3 
2018/19 

Q4 
2018/19 

Q1 
2019/20 

Q2 
2019/20 

1 Progress towards £3.1m savings per annum required by 2019-20 identified in the 
Financial Plan for 2015-2020.  Cumulative target savings of £337,196 for 2019/20  £110,100 £119,230 _ £279,570 

2 
Growth in Business Rates (2019/20 target £1,355,870) reported annually  £1,407,013   

Number of new homes built (cumulative figure year to date) 
Local housing need target 555 / Housing delivery test target 500 300 436 158 333 

3 Reduce contamination of recycling to15.00% by 31 March 2020 (cumulative) 20.2% 20.4% 20.2% 24.0% 

4 

Footfall in King’s Lynn Town Centre compared to same quarter in the previous 
year -11.6% -2.9% -6.5% -0.6% 

Number of Town Heritage Initiative buildings where work has commenced  
(cumulative) 18 19 20 20 

5 Deliver an 8% increase in mobile coverage / superfast broadband of west Norfolk 
premises by June 2020  11% 11% 12% 13% 

6 Support clients via the Ask LILY Advisor service (30 clients per quarter) 103 89 78 65 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

78



Detailed progress by Corporate Business Plan priorities  
 

Key to status 

 
Progress is on track 

 
Progress is slightly behind schedule 

 
Action has been cancelled for the reasons 
stated 

 
Progress is significantly behind schedule 

 
The action has been completed  Key action on hold 

 

Note: 
- Progress is derived either from completion of key milestones or is a subjective judgement by the relevant senior manager. 
- Target dates do not necessarily reflect the final completion date.  The date given may reflect the next milestone to be reached, or it may reflect the 

overall target date for completion.  This is a judgement and decision made by the relevant senior manager. 
 

 Priority 1 - Provide important local services within our available resources 
 

1.  We will: Deliver our ‘channel-shift’ programme 
Cabinet Member: Cllr P Kunes 

Status Key Action Progress Review Date Comment 

 

Undertake a programme of 
business process change 
workshops to map existing 
processes and identify areas which 
can be improved to achieve cost 
savings and/or improved levels of 
service 

Ongoing December 
2019 

During Q2 the council has been looking at ways to improve how fly-tipping 
requests are processed, approximately 100 fly-tipping reports are received per 
month. A map has been introduced on the council website ‘Report-it’, allowing 
customers to view recent reports including those on public and private land to 
avoid repeat contact and multiple reports. Work has been successful to 
integrate the online form with IDOX Uniform, Report-it and Open Process, 
avoiding the need for staff to access three different systems to deal with a 
request and improving the location information provided to the clean-up 
operatives. The new way of working will go ‘live’ at the beginning of October. 

 

Identify gaps in knowledge and 
skills in digital services for staff and 
arrange to roll out appropriate 
training 

Ongoing December       
2019 

By introducing new ways of working for fly-tipping requests, this identified 
training needs for CIC advisors, back office staff and the clean-up operatives. 
The CIC advisors and back office staff have received training in the new 
procedures, which included a consistent approach on updating IDOX Uniform. 
Also, the clean-up operative team leaders have been allocated mobiles to 
access location details through ‘Report-it’ and service requests. Previously all 
departments relied on customers describing locations, which could be very 
time consuming and resulted in many incidents not being found. Customers 
can now pin-point the location of the fly-tipping on a map, which provides 
coordinates to locate the fly-tipping and aid the enforcement team (CSNN) in 
identifying hotspots. 

 

79



2.  We will: Continue to seek new and effective ways of working 
Cabinet Member: Cllr B Long 

Status Key Action Progress Review date Comment 

 

Develop and deliver a programme 
of training to enable employees to 
adapt effectively to new challenges 
and new ways of working and 
which support corporate priorities. 

On track December 
2019 

Delegates on the new level 5 management programme are progressing 
well.  New training programmes for managers in relation to undertaking 
employee investigations and procedures for managing absence, along with 
cultural sensitivities training for front line employees are currently being rolled 
out, with a number of sessions of each training course planned during Q3/Q4.   

 

3. We will: Take opportunities to generate income and draw in grant funding where it helps us achieve our priorities 
Cabinet Members: Cllr B Long, Cllr P Gidney, Cllr E Nockolds and Cllr G Middleton 

Status Key Action Progress Review Date Comment 

 

Put in place a programme of works 
for increasing the use of council 
buildings by third parties 

Completed September 
2019 

King’s Court is at capacity, and Valentine Road has been marketed for new 
tenants most of 2019 to date with no success. The same applies to The Priory 
Centre – long term marketing and no interest. 

 

Develop opportunities to generate 
revenue and capital receipts by 
working with partners on the One 
Public Estate (OPE) programme 

Ongoing December     
2019 

During November, consultation will be taking place with Hunstanton Town 
Council, the Coastal Community Team, Chamber of Trade and the Civic 
Society on the OPE sites of Hunstanton bus station / library and a site for a 
possible hotel.  The Hunstanton Southern Seafront Masterplan will be covered 
at the same sessions.       

 

Implement the actions identified in 
the land review of sites owned by 
the Borough Council  

Ongoing December  
2019 

Preliminary engagement is taking place with Burnham Market Parish Council to 
agree public consultation in an open Parish Council meeting, to undertake pre-
planning consultation exercise on a site in the village.  An agreed site in 
Hunstanton, is progressing; the site is being taken forward as part of the 
council’s Major Housing Contract with Lovell Homes and a planning application 
is due to be submitted late in 2019.  Five further sites are being considered for 
development/disposal.  A further site, potentially viable for self-build has been 
identified and feasibility work is being undertaken. 

 
 

Priority 1 other actions 

Status Key Action Progress Review Date Comment 

 

Monitor the Efficiency Plan, report 
progress achieved by developing/ 
reviewing major projects and 
identify further opportunities for 
securing savings.  

On track for 
end of year 

December      
2019 

Progress is being monitored and to date savings of £280k have been achieved 
in 2019/20 and a further £26k of savings are anticipated for the year. This 
totals £306k for the year, which equates to achieving 91% of the target of 
£337k. The make-up of the savings is different to what was originally 
anticipated, these include:- 
• some savings coming from new schemes, offset by savings slipping into the 

following years where scheme implementation has been delayed 

80



• savings not being as high as originally projected  
• some proposals once they have been looked at in detail have not been 

possible to implement as originally proposed. 
 
 

Priority 2 - Drive local economic and housing growth 
 

4. We will: Support new and existing businesses to help them thrive  
Cabinet Member: Cllr P Gidney and Cllr G Middleton 
Status Key Action Progress Review Date Comment 

 

Deliver a 24 month targeted action 
plan to maximise take up of plots 
on the Enterprise Zone 

Progressing  December       
2019 

Still awaiting the outcome of the reserved matters planning application.  This 
has been amended to accommodate one of the interested parties.  Heads of 
Terms are in advanced discussion in connection with this.     

 

Enterprise Zone infrastructure 
delivery – re-routing of the main 
gas pipeline, access roads, utilities 
and superfast internet 

Progressing December       
2019 

Following the reserved matters planning determination, tenders for the 
infrastructure (roads and services) will be issued.   Works on the remaining 
infrastructure are planned to start early in the new year.  Enabling works will 
take place before then, including earthworks and surcharging.          

 
Enterprise Zone – delivery of first 
phase spec units Ongoing December      

2019 

A framework of four contractors to develop premises is in place.   The preferred 
main contractor has been identified and permission to let the contract has been 
confirmed by Cabinet.  Pre-construction meetings are planned for the next 
quarter.  A repayable grant on good terms has been agreed with New Anglia 
LEP to help finance the development.  

 
Progress the future High Streets 
fund bid On track December      

2019 

The draft submission to MHCLG Future High Streets Fund (FHSF) Team is 
due by 15 January 2020 with the final submission by 30 April 2020. All 
inception meetings and calls have been completed with the FHSF Team and 
information on the business development case plan submitted. A short list of 
candidate projects has been prepared based on deliverability over the period 
April 2020 to March 2024. Individual project meetings with partners are 
ongoing.  

 

 
Implement the King’s Lynn town 
centre study  
 

Completed September 
2019 

The town centre study has concluded and has led to the ability to make bids for 
funding to help revive the town centre; these include High Street Heritage 
Action Zone, Future High Street Fund and the Towns Fund.  Individual action 
entries will be set up as we are notified of a new funding stream; this entry has 
therefore been completed.    

 
Deliver the High Street Heritage 
Action Zone programme New December 

2019 

During Q2, the council have been advised that it has been successful in 
obtaining High Street Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) funding, subject to 
completion of a full programme design.  High Street HAZ aims to find new 
ways to champion and revive historic high streets.   
Some of the outline proposals within the King’s Lynn bid include: 

81



• heritage led shop front improvements 
• over-shop living conversions 
• providing visitor and tourism opportunities 
• developing alternative uses for vacant units, such as leisure and culture 
• bringing vacant buildings back into use 
A full programme design will be put together by a local partnership board along 
with Historic England and the final funding should be confirmed in early 2020. 

 
Develop proposals for KLIC2 – 
move-on space 

Action has 
been 

cancelled  

December      
2019 

As King’s Lynn has been shortlisted for TOWN funding, new proposals are 
being developed that will be in line with the objectives of the KLIC2 plan.  This 
key action will be cancelled and replaced in Q3 with a new key action. 

 

5. We will: Meet our housing growth targets 
Cabinet Members: Cllr A Lawrence and Cllr P Gidney 

Status Key Action Progress Review Date Comment 

 

Progress the implementation of the 
Borough Council’s approved Major 
Housing Scheme to approved 
schedule 

Progressing 
well 

December       
2019 

Construction continues on Marsh Lane and Lynnsport 4/5 with 125 units sold to 
date, with a further 21 exchanged or reserved. Pre-commencement planning 
conditions clearance continues for Lynnsport 1.  Lynnsport 3 is now a live site 
with the first houses now being built and infrastructure works complete. 

 

Progress phases 2 and 3 of the 
NORA Joint Venture Housing 
Scheme 

Progressing 
well 

December 
2019 

Final site works on the NORA phase 3 site are almost complete.  32 units have 
been sold, with a further 2 exchanged or reserved, leaving just 7 properties to 
sell on this site. 

 
Phase 4 of NORA – modular 
construction Ongoing December      

2019 

L&GMH decided not to proceed with the contract to build the units on this site.  
This has meant that the entire site has gone back to the architects to be re-
designed as a traditionally built site.  The re-design will allow for more 
properties to be built but will require a new planning permission which we are 
anticipating will be submitted in early 2020.       

 

Acquire strategically located sites 
to enable additional phases to 
proceed 

Completed September     
2019 All NORA land acquisitions are complete.   

 
Accelerated construction 
programme Ongoing December 

2019 

Contracts for all schemes apart from Boal Quay are anticipated to be signed by 
Jan 2020. Boal Quay has been formally withdrawn from the Accelerated 
Construction Programme (ACP) due to unachievable timescales. This decision 
does not affect the other ACP schemes and there are no financial implications.  

 

To increase housing supply and 
provide investment opportunities, 
develop and establish a wholly 
owned Local Authority Company to 
develop and acquire new 
affordable housing units  

On track December     
2019 

The company has acquired 12 new affordable 1, 2 and 3 bedroom homes. 
These have been leased to Broadland Housing Association who will have 
management responsibility. Of the three shared ownership properties two are 
sold subject to contract and one is subject to an application in progress. 

82



 

Progress next phase of the Nelson 
Quay scheme development and 
testing in preparation for planning 
and funding applications 

Action has 
been 

cancelled  

December       
2019  

Alternate proposals are now being developed for the Nelson Quay site.  This 
key action will therefore be cancelled and replaced with a new key action in 
due course. 

 

Deliver the Heritage Action Zone 
(HAZ) Unlocking Brownfields 
Feasibility Study 

Completed September 
2019 

The Unlocking Brownfields Feasibility Study has been completed. There has 
subsequently been a great deal of positivity and support from the informal 
working group and Regeneration and Development Panel both have confirmed 
their willingness for the progression of sites. Individual sites, as they are taken 
forward will be added as separate entries on this report. Chapel Street and 
South Gate entries are already shown below. 

 
Develop proposals for Chapel 
Street car park  To schedule December 

2019 

An architectural firm has now been formally appointed to develop a design and 
submit a planning application (end of RIBA stage 3).  The design will be drafted 
and then taken to Members for input prior to submission for planning, which is 
likely to be late Spring 2020.   

 

Develop proposals for the area 
around the South Gate – a key 
approach in to King’s Lynn 

Schedule 
being 

developed 

December  
2019 

A feasibility study is required for this large and complex site, we are in receipt 
of this scope. The variables of this site require a more complex approach and 
scoping/design work/financial analysis is underway. Consultants are looking at 
preliminary re-designs to provide an improved traffic flow around the South 
Gate roundabout.    

 
6. We will: Support activity that helps drive up the skills levels of local people 
Cabinet Member: Cllr B Long and Cllr G Middleton 

Status Key Action Progress Review Date Comment 

 

Ensure the Council responds 
effectively to new requirements in 
relation to apprenticeships 

Ongoing December 
2019 

New apprentices have commenced in Revenues and Benefits, Environmental 
Health and Planning.  The new level 3 management programme being 
delivered as an apprenticeship with the College of West Anglia, is progressing 
well.  A range of other apprenticeships for existing employees are being 
supported. 

 

Co-ordinate and provide support to 
the west Norfolk Partnership’s 
Strategy Group to bring together 
the main public sector service 
providers and the umbrella 
organisation for the voluntary 
sector to improve quality of life in 
west Norfolk 

Ongoing December 
2019 

The Strategy Group, which includes chief executives from key services, met in 
September and received a range of presentations/updates in relation to key 
areas of interest to partners – in particular receiving updates on progress with 
the west Norfolk Help Hub and the merger of CCG’s in Norfolk.  

 
 

83



Priority 2 other actions 

 

Respond to increasing levels of 
homelessness within the Borough 
by expanding the availability of 
temporary accommodation 
including consideration of available 
council buildings and development 
sites 

On track December      
2019 

The project is being delivered by a housing association partner on a council 
controlled site. The new temporary housing site to accommodate modular style 
houses will be coming forward for planning imminently. This modular project is 
not related to the Major Housing Project. 

 

Develop and implement new policy 
and practice in relation to the 
requirements of the Self-build and 
Custom Housebuilding Act 2015 

On track December       
2019 

The site in Stoke Ferry will be discussed imminently, policy review with 
Neighbourhood Plan group and proposed development plan policy review as 
detailed in the strategy are on track. An assessment of the alternative models 
of “custom build enabling” is focused on selecting a partner to work with to 
deliver the site. This is really important in shaping the project. An options paper 
will go to the Custom and Self Build Task Group. In December 2019, At the 
national Build It Awards, the Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk 
won the Best Council for Self or Custom Build Award. 
 

 

Priority 3 - Work with our communities to ensure they remain clean and safe  
 

7. We will: Improve recycling levels 
Cabinet Member: Cllr I Devereux 

Status Key Action Progress Review Date Comment 

 

Find ways to raise awareness 
levels in the public arena to 
enhance the recycling scheme 
across the borough 

Ongoing December      
2019 

An online Q&A was held as part of the activities associated with Recycle week 
in September. In total there were 20 tweets in the hour and the total 
impressions for these tweets were 10,154 devices which on average, each 
message was seen by 507 people/devices. 130 people engaged with the 
content (for example clicked on it, retweet, replies and follows).  Environment 
Portfolio Holder, Cllr Devereux signed the Courtauld Agreement at the King’s 
Lynn Foodbank.  The signatories of the Courtauld agreement are asked for a 
commitment to the following: 
• Work with others to identify and develop good practices in engaging with 

others. 
• Engage with residents and colleagues to enable changes in consumption 

habits - for example deliver ‘Love Food Hate Waste’ messages. 
• Report annually to WRAP on what has been done to engage with residents.  
The new waste contract will include marketing plans to enhance recycling for 
public and commercial sectors. 

84



 

Work to reduce recycling 
contamination by monitoring  
recycling in areas highlighted as 
part of the enhanced auditing 
scheme  

Ongoing December  
2019 

Awaiting outcomes of Norfolk Waste Partnership (NWP) priority work from 
pilots being run in other parts of Norfolk and working on preparing a tool kit for 
use on communal bins with NWP colleagues. In Q2, bins were purchased 
which say “No bagged materials” on the lid of the recycling bin and these will 
be distributed during Q3. 

 

8. We will: Ensure that our local streets and public open areas are clean 
Cabinet Member: Cllr I Devereux and Cllr E Nockolds 

Status Key Action Progress Review Date Comment 

 

Streetscenes: Maintain sustainable 
levels of service delivery that 
meets the needs of the community 

Ongoing December      
2019 

The public toilets at Heacham North Beach and Heacham South have been re-
roofed, re-painted and re-opened.  The dog waste collection service continues 
to grow each month as requests for new bins are added to the schedule.  The 
Refill scheme is complete with the installation of three water machines at the 
Walks Management Building, Central Promenade Toilets Hunstanton and at 
the bus station in Kings Lynn.   

 

Grounds Maintenance: Maintain 
sustainable levels of service 
delivery that meets the needs of 
the community 

Ongoing December      
2019 

A review of the grass cutting and general grounds maintenance regimes have 
been undertaken with the amendment and inclusion of 106 areas and housing 
development plans. NVQ2 and NVQ3 apprentice schemes is ongoing within 
POS service areas. 

 

Parks and Gardens: Maintain 
sustainable levels of service 
delivery that meets the needs of 
the community 

Ongoing December      
2019 

West Norfolk won gold for each of its market towns, including best overall 
winner of the Anglia in Bloom trophy for Hunstanton.  The results of Britain in 
bloom are due in October. Ongoing progress within community working inc. 
partnership / inclusion and involvement throughout the borough via Green Flag, 
In Bloom, HLF funded projects, residential associations and BID. Green Flag 
has been awarded for The Walks, Tower Gardens, Esplanade, Boston square 
and crematorium. Tower Gardens and Willows are now formally registered as 
Fields in Trust sites. 

 

9. We will: Pro-actively address anti-social behaviour 
Cabinet Member: Cllr I Devereux 

Status Key Action Progress Review Date Comment 

No key actions 
 

Priority 4 - Celebrate our local heritage and culture 
 

10. We will: Deliver an annual programme of festivals and events to attract people into west Norfolk and showcase our area  
Cabinet Member: Cllr E Nockolds 

85



 

Assist, facilitate and promote 
events in other parts of the 
Borough 

Ongoing December      
2019 

A list for events in other parts of the borough is maintained and promoted on 
the www.visitwestnorfolk.com  website. 

 
11. We will: Support the improvement of our built heritage, drawing in third-party funding wherever possible 
Cabinet Members: Cllr P Gidney, Cllr R Blunt and Cllr E Nockolds 

Status Key Action Progress Review Date Comment 

 

Actively progress derelict land and 
buildings across the borough using 
a variety of methods, including 
enforcement action where 
appropriate. 

Good December       
2019 

Following training, proposals are being brought forward for increased emphasis 
on viable properties.  The two Section 215 notices covered in the previous 
report, have been complied with and properties are in better condition.  The list 
remains fluid and as sites are progressed by the cross department officer team, 
whether from action we are taking or from external activity, the list is updated.   

 

Implement key phases of the 
Hunstanton Regeneration 
Programme 

Progressing December      
2019 

The summer events that took place as part of the Hunstanton Heritage 
Gardens project were well attended and well received.  The final claim for the 
project is being prepared.  The Hunstanton Heritage Gardens Activity Co-
ordinator post will therefore cease at the end of November 2019. 
The Southern Seafront Masterplan project options appraisal will be consulted 
on during Q3.  Consultation will take place with key stakeholders and the 
general public.   
The wayfinding and signage project for the seafront, funded by the ‘Coastal 
Revival Fund’ is now planned to commence in late Spring 2020.  This is a 
community led project, supported by Hunstanton Coastal Community Team.   

 

Develop proposals for 
refurbishment of the St George’s 
Guildhall complex  

Ongoing December       
2019 

As part of the ongoing review and options appraisal for the Guildhall site, and 
as a result of the visioning exercise that took place, an expression of interest is 
being consulted upon, with a view to submission to the National Heritage 
Lottery Fund later this year.   

 

Progress the Sommerfeld & 
Thomas warehouse and former 
grain silos sites 

Progressing  December 
2019 

Tender responses mentioned in Q1 have been received.  Further investigations 
are now taking place into the most cost and time effective way to take the 
project forward.  Options include making a planning and listed building consent 
to demolish the recent additions (but this will have party wall implications) or 
simply remove pigeon guano, which would enable surveys to take place.     

 

12. We will: Support leisure and tourism within the borough 
Cabinet Member: Cllr E Nockolds 

Status Key Action Progress Review Date Comment 

 
Deliver the action plan of the 2016-
20 west Norfolk Destination 

Progressing 
well 

December       
2019 

The Tourism department once again supported the 'King's Lynn Heritage Open 
Day' event held in September by producing and funding both the production of 
the Heritage Open Day booklet (11,000 copies printed of the A5-sized 24-page 

86

http://www.visitwestnorfolk.com/


Management Plan colour brochure) and the local distribution of the booklet.  The event was noted 
by many to be a great success, with over 1,000 people attending venue 
openings and events all around the town and a reported 800+ visitors to Lynn 
Museum on the day too.  Work is underway on the annual longstanding glossy 
brochure 'West Norfolk Holiday Guide 2020'.  Production work on this involves 
liaison with both existing advertisers and potential new advertisers from the 
local tourism industry.  The brochure will be distributed throughout the country's 
TIC network and has newly-commissioned photography included. Work also 
started on the popular annual fold-out pamphlet "Where to Go in West Norfolk".  
This 100,000 copy print-run will be ready for distribution in early 2020. 

 
Deliver the west Norfolk Tourism 
Explorer Trails project On track December       

2019 

A significant content update to our new Explore West Norfolk website and apps 
was completed towards the end of July 2019. This update included partnership 
working with Norfolk Trails team, and the full series of sixteen trails from 
Norfolk County Council's "West Norfolk Coastal Treasures" publication is now 
fully-featured on the Walk West Norfolk app and related Explore West Norfolk 
website section.  This major content update was accompanied by social media 
promotion via content uploaded on our Visit West Norfolk Twitter channel in 
August 2019. 

 
Deliver the Sail the Wash project 
with partners Progressing December 

2019 

This project continues to be progressed, in partnership with Fenland District 
Council.  The project will deliver additional moorings, extended pontoons and 
buoyage within The Wash. Work includes hydrographic surveys, website, 
marketing and operational procedures.  

 
Develop proposals for a 2 screen 
cinema at the Corn Exchange Progressing  December      

2019 
The main contractor has been appointed and initial scaffolding is due to be 
erected during November.  The main internal work is due to start early in 2020. 

 

Priority 5 - Stand up for local interests within our region 
 

13. We will: Explore options for west Norfolk to help us take more control over the services that impact on people’s lives 
Cabinet Member: Cllr B Long 
No key actions 

 

14. We will: Lobby for infrastructure improvements including rural broadband and mobile coverage, road and rail improvements and 
coastal protection 
Cabinet Members: Cllr B Long, Cllr G Middleton, Cllr R Blunt and Cllr I Devereux 

Status Key Action Progress Review Date Comment 

 

Work with Better Broadband for 
Norfolk (BBfN) with a view to 
achieving over 95% coverage for 
super-fast broadband for the west 

Ongoing December       
2019 

The Better Broadband for Norfolk Programme is aiming to maximise the 
availability of Superfast Broadband (at least 30Mbps) across the county by the 
end of March 2021. At the end of September total coverage was 95%.  The 
second contract has implemented 108 new fibre cabinets and 56 Fibre to the 

87



Norfolk area once the current 
‘roll-out’ is complete 

Premises (FTTP) solutions across the borough which have provided access to 
fast broadband for over 9,800 properties.  The order of the rollout continues to 
be based, on the most efficient possible, to ensure as many properties as 
possible have access to Superfast speeds by minimising deployment costs.  10 
additional cabinets and 12 FTTP solutions have commenced implementation in 
the borough and 37 surveys have been completed. The Borough Council has 
contributed financially to the Better Broadband for Norfolk rollout programme. 

 

Work with the County Council and 
other members of the A47 Alliance 
to promote improvements to the 
A47 trunk road 

Ongoing March  
2020 

The A47 Alliance Steering Group met in Gt Yarmouth on 27 September 
2019. As part of its Regional Delivery Partnerships framework, Highways 
England has signed a contract with Galliford Try to deliver the A47 corridor 
improvement programme around Norwich and Peterborough. In 
Cambridgeshire, approximately 1.5 miles of the A47 between Wansford and 
Sutton will be upgraded to dual carriageway and there will be an improvement 
of the roundabout at the A47/ A141 junction in Guyhirn. In Norfolk,1.5 miles of 
the A47 between Blofield and North Burlingham and around 5.5 miles of the 
A47 between North Tuddenham to Easton will be dualled, while the A47/A11 
Thickthorn junction will also be upgraded. All works are due to be completed in 
2024.  Improvements in West Norfolk await the announcement of Road 
Investment Strategy 2 (RIS2) which is likely by the end of the year. The Project 
Board set up to take forward the Wisbech Access Strategy including 
improvements to the A47 Broad End Rd, Walsoken Junction continues to meet. 

 

Work with partner members of the 
Ely Area Improvements Task Force 
to secure improvements to the 
King’s Lynn – Cambridge – London 
King’s Cross rail service 

Ongoing March  
2020 

The Ely Area Road and Rail Study will be taken forward as an integrated 
package towards the Strategic Outline Business Case stage with a target date 
of November 2019. 

 

Work with stakeholders in 
Snettisham, Heacham and 
Hunstanton areas which are 
affected by coastal flooding issues 
to develop options for flood 
prevention works  

Ongoing March   
2020 

A Stakeholder Forum was held on 2 October 2019. The funding group will meet 
on 31 October 2019 and a newsletter has been produced to distribute across 
the affected area.  

 

West Winch – part 2 
West Winch Relief Road Scoping 
and design 

Ongoing December 
2019 

Design work on the West Winch Housing Access Road is progressing in 
parallel with wider work on the remainder of the growth area to ensure the 
housing is delivered holistically. A number of issues have arisen that have 
delayed the likely submission date for the planning application for the road. 
These include an additional joint study with Highways England to identify a 
solution for the road that also helps to improve the Hardwick junction and 
needing to gain access to land to carry out ground investigation.  Assuming 

88



scoping work on environmental issues and work on a masterplan for the wider 
site is completed as soon as possible, we are expecting to submit the planning 
application for the road in summer 2020. Regular monthly project meetings are 
continuing between the council, NCC, consultants and Highways England. 
Dialogue with the Parish Councils and Neighbourhood Plan Group continues 
and we expect to have a wider community consultation is spring 2020.   

 
West Winch – part 3 
Relief Road Infrastructure Funding 

Ongoing December  
2019 

Recently, Norfolk County Council (NCC) were offered the opportunity to apply 
for a new government fund supporting road infrastructure; and indicated that 
they considered putting forward the West Winch Housing Access road as part 
of their bid. The council supported this proposal.  The Housing Access Road 
has now gained concept support by the regional transport body as part of four 
schemes from this region.  The bid was submitted by NCC on 31st July 2019 
and is currently waiting to see if it reaches the next stage in the process. 

 
King’s Lynn Area Transport Study To schedule December 

2019 

The King’s Lynn Transport Study (KLTS) is going through the final stakeholder 
feedback stages prior to publication. It is intended to take the study to the 
Regeneration and Development Panel in December 2019 and Cabinet in 
January 2020. 

 

15. We will: Lobby to retain the core service infrastructure – such as the hospital, appropriate medical and judicial services, 
education and others – that reflects the needs of local people and the importance of west Norfolk in the sub-region 
Cabinet Members: Cllr B Long, Cllr G Middleton and Cllr E Nockolds 
No key actions 

 

Comment 
Over the course of the 2015 – 2020 Corporate Business Plan we will update actions within this section as and when activity in this area occurs.   
Examples of work undertaken previously are: helping to bring the Anglia Ruskin University site to King’s Lynn; and working to assist the Queen Elizabeth 
Hospital to become a trust.   

 

 

Priority 6 - Work with our partners on important services for the borough 
 

16. We will: Continue to support improvements in the educational attainment of our young people 
Cabinet Member: Cllr B Long 

Status Key Action Progress Review Date Comment 

 

Engage with partners and schools 
in identifying initiatives to address 
low levels of educational 
attainment and skills in the 
Borough 

On track December        
2019 

Meetings of the attainment steering group and primary heads have been held 
in Q2, with discussions on plans for projects for the remainder of the 2019/20 
academic year being discussed. Plans are well underway for the 2020 West 
Norfolk University Challenge Conference, which will take place at the College 
of West Anglia in January 2020 and for a repeat of the Midsummer Nights 
Dream transition project for primary schools in July 2020. 

89



 

  17. We will: Work closely with partners in health and adult services to improve services for older people 
Cabinet Member: Cllr E Nockolds 

No key actions 
18. We will: Support ‘early help’ initiatives aimed at preventing problems from arising in the first place 
Cabinet Member: Cllr B Long and Cllr A Lawrence 

Status Key Action Progress Review Date Comment 

 

Take an active role in the ‘west 
Norfolk Early Help Hub’ along with 
other partners, in order to identify 
and address issues with young 
people to prevent escalation to 
social care level 

Ongoing December       
2019 

The council has organised an event to be held at the Town Hall in October to 
increase the understanding of the West Norfolk Help Hub and how it can 
benefit professionals and their customers. The hub helps to address the 
customer's needs, before their difficulties become unmanageable. The hub has 
27 partners which include Norfolk County Council, Leeway, Money Advice Hub, 
Norfolk Fire and Rescue, Action for Children, MAP, West Norfolk CCG and 
Freebridge Community Housing. 

 

Use the flexibility within the 
enhanced Better Care Fund / 
Disabled Facilities Grant 
(BCF/DFG) allocation and the 
Integrated Housing Adaptations 
Team (IHAT) approach to support 
and assist vulnerable people in the 
borough  

Ongoing December        
2019 

Demand on the DFG service remains high, enquiries are between 95-100 per 
month and the IHAT is still scheduling visits within 4-7 weeks of the enquiry.  
District Direct West – Funding has been approved by the CCG and NCC for the 
remainder of the year and a report is being taken forward for two further year’s 
funding. The service has received approximately 170 referrals since the launch 
into both the Adaptation team and Homelessness team.  Work will commence 
with mental health teams and expanding the knowledge about the services. 

 
Homelessness and Housing 
Delivery Task Group Ongoing December       

2019 

Feedback from the homelessness and rough sleeping strategy has been 
discussed with the group.  A stakeholder event is planned for late 
November/early December 2019. 

 
 

Priority 6 other actions 

 

Work with Norfolk County Council 
(NCC) to facilitate new housing 
solutions for people currently being 
accommodated in expensive 
inappropriate residential care. To 
include people with learning 
difficulties, enduring mental health 
problems, and Housing with Care 
for elderly people. 

Ongoing December      
2019 

Findings of the Norfolk wide extra care housing needs assessment has been 
released, a draft report for consultation purposes is anticipated imminently. 

 

90



FORWARD DECISIONS LIST

Date of 
meeting

Report title Key or 
Non Key 
Decision

Decision Maker Cabinet  Member and Lead 
Officer

List of 
Background 
Papers 

Public or Private 
Meeting

7 January 
2020

Corporate Business Plan Key Council Leader
Chief Executive

Public

Council Tax Support 
Scheme 2020/2021 – Final 
Scheme for Approval

Key Council Housing
S151 Officer

Public

Homelessness and Rough 
Sleeper Strategy 
Consultation

Non Council Housing
Chief Executive

Public

National Planning Policy 
Framework – Vacant 
Building Credit

Non Cabinet Development
Exec Dir G Hall

Public

Review of Contract Standing 
Orders

Non Council S151 Officer
Leader

Public

Date of 
meeting

Report title Key or 
Non Key 
Decision

Decision Maker Cabinet  Member and Lead 
Officer

List of 
Background 
Papers 

Public or Private 
Meeting

4 February 
2020

Notice of Motion – Climate 
Change 

Non Council Environment
Exec Dir G Hall

Public

Budget Key Council S151 Officer
Leader

Public

Capital Programme Key Council S151 Officer
Leader

Public

King’s Lynn Area Transport 
Study

Non Cabinet Development
Exec Dir – G Hall

Public

91

A
genda Item

 11



Major Housing Project 2 Key Council Project Delivery
Exec Dir - C Bamfield

Private - Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

Update to the Major Project 
Board Terms of reference

Non Cabinet Leader
Asst Dir – M Henry

Public

Notices of Motion – 
Hardings Way

Non Council Development
Asst Dir – M Henry

Public

Review of Standing Orders Non Council Leader
Chief Executive

Public

Scrutiny and the Executive 
Protocol

Non Council Leader
Chief Executive

Public

Nora 4 Key Cabinet Project Delivery
Exec Dir – C Bamfield

Strategic Property 
Acquisition 

Key Cabinet Corporate Projects and Assets
Exec Dir - C Bamfield

Private - Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

Development Options - 
Hunstanton

Key Council Project Delivery
Exec Dir - C Bamfield

Private - Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

92



Hunstanton Coastal 
Management Plan

Key Cabinet Environment
Exec Dir – G Hall

Public

Treasury Management 
Strategy for 2020/21 and 
Prudential Indicators for 
2019/20 to 2022/23

Key Council Leader
S151 officer

Public

Future High Streets – Stage 
2 bid for funding

Key Cabinet Business Development
Exec Dir – C Bamfield

Public

Towns Fund – Town Deal 
Board

Non Cabinet Business Development
Exec Dir – C Bamfield

Public

Date of 
meeting

Report title Key or 
Non Key 
Decision

Decision Maker Cabinet  Member and Lead 
Officer

List of 
Background 
Papers 

Public or Private 
Meeting

17 March 
2020

Capital Strategy Key Council Leader
Deputy Chief Executive

Public

Major Housing Phase 3 – 
Enabling Work for Lynnsport 
1

Key Council Project Delivery
Exec Dir - C Bamfield

Private - Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

Salters Road, King’s Lynn Key Cabinet Project Delivery
Exec Dir – C Bamfield

Private - Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 

93



any person 
(including the 
authority)

CIL Governance Key Council Development 
Exec Dir – G Hall

Public

Date of 
meeting

Report title Key or 
Non Key 
Decision

Decision Maker Cabinet  Member and Lead 
Officer

List of 
Background 
Papers 

Public or Private 
Meeting

April  2020

Parkway – Accelerated 
Construction Scheme

Key Council Project Delivery
Exec Dir – C Bamfield

Private - Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

Southend Road and 
Hunstanton Bus Station

Key Council Project Delivery
Exec Dir – C Bamfield

Private - Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority)

94



CORPORATE PERFORMANCE PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 2019/2020

DATE OF 
MEETING

TITLE TYPE OF 
REPORT

LEAD 
OFFICER

OBJECTIVES AND DESIRED 
OUTCOMES

10 June 2019 Appointment of Vice-Chairman

10 June 2019 Presentation on Freedom of 
Information Procedure

Presentation C Jordan
Eastlaw

To inform the Panel of the Council’s 
Freedom of Information Procedure

22 July 2019 Exempt Report
Hunstanton Sailing Club
DEFERRED TO 9 
SEPTEMBER 2019

Update Tony Devenish from Hunstanton Sailing 
Club to provide an overview on how the 
Club have met their criteria for the 
funding previously granted by the 
Borough Council.

22 July 2019 Consideration of Called in item 
– Financial Assistance Scheme

Call in L Gore and S 
Dennis

To consider the call-in.

22 July 2019 Nominations to Outside Bodies 
and Partnerships – Hunstanton 
Sailing Club Development Sub 
Committee

Operational The Panel is invited to nominate a 
representative as an observer only to 
participate in the outside bodies and 
partnerships which fall within the 
Corporate Performance Panel’s remit; 
Hunstanton Sailing Club Development 
Sub Committee.

22 July 2019 2018/2019 Full Year Corporate 
Performance Monitoring Report

Monitoring B Box To review the report and in particular the 
Action Report.  Members are also asked 
to agree the actions outlined in the 
Action Report.

95

A
genda Item

 12



DATE OF 
MEETING

TITLE TYPE OF 
REPORT

LEAD 
OFFICER

OBJECTIVES AND DESIRED 
OUTCOMES

22 July 2019 Q4 2018/2019 Corporate 
Business Plan Monitoring 
Report

Monitoring B Box The Panel are invited to review the Q4 
2018/2019 Corporate Business Plan 
Monitoring Report.

22 July 2019 Corporate Performance 
Monitoring – Target Setting for 
2019/2020

Monitoring B Box To review and suggest any new targets.

9 September 2019 Exempt Report
Hunstanton Sailing Club
DEFERRED FROM 22 JULY 
2019

Update Tony Devenish from Hunstanton Sailing 
Club to provide an overview on how the 
Club have met their criteria for the 
funding previously granted by the 
Borough Council.

9 September 2019 Corporate Business Plan 2020-
2024

Monitoring G Greaves The Panel is invited to consider the draft 
priorities and objectives in Appendix A.

9 September 2019 Equalities Update Update B Box To Panel to receive an annual update.

21 October 2019 New Corporate Complaints 
Policy

Policy H Howell The Panel is invited to consider the draft 
policy.

21 October 2019 Managing Unreasonable 
Complainant Behaviour

Policy H Howell The Panel is invited to consider the draft 
policy.

96



DATE OF 
MEETING

TITLE TYPE OF 
REPORT

LEAD 
OFFICER

OBJECTIVES AND DESIRED 
OUTCOMES

21 October 2019 Formal Complaints against the 
Borough Council 1 April 2018 – 
31 March 2019

The number of compliments 
received also to be reported.

Annual Chief Executive Report to be published on the Borough 
Council’s Website/Insite

21 October 2019 Q1 2019/2020 Corporate 
Performance Monitoring Report

Monitoring B Box To review the report and in particular the 
Action Report.  Members are also asked 
to agree the actions outlined in the 
Action report.

21 October 2019 Annual Sickness Monitoring 
Report

Annual B Box For Information only.

21 October 2019 Employment Monitoring 
Figures – Annual Report

Annual B Box For Information only.

26 November 2019 Annual Communications 
Update

Annual Update S Clifton
H Howell
A Howell

To provide the Panel with an annual 
update.

26 November 2019 Council Tax Support:  Final 
Scheme for 2020/2021

Policy 
Development

J Stanton Update following consultation period.  To 
agree the final Council Tax Support 
Scheme for 2020/2021.

26 November 2019 Corporate Business Plan 2020-
2024 – Consultation on revised 
plan

G Greaves The Panel is invited to consider the 
revised plan.

97



DATE OF 
MEETING

TITLE TYPE OF 
REPORT

LEAD 
OFFICER

OBJECTIVES AND DESIRED 
OUTCOMES

13 January 2020 Major Housing Update Update D Gagen

13 January 2020 Q2 2019/2020 Corporate 
Business Plan Monitoring 
Report

Monitoring B Box The Panel are invited to review the Q2 
2019/2020 Corporate Business Plan 
Monitoring Report.

13 January 2020 Q2 2019/2020 Corporate 
Performance Monitoring Report

Monitoring B Box To review the report and in particular the 
Action Report.  Members are also asked 
to agree the actions outlined in the 
Action Report.

25 February 2020 Presentation on Improving 
Attainment in West Norfolk

Annual Update B Box To provide an update on the Improving 
Attainment in West Norfolk.

25 February 2020 Update on the Refit Project Update N Gromett To receive an update on the Refit 
Project.

25 February 2020 Post Evaluation of H & M Post Evaluation M Henry

7 April 2020 Update on the Procurement 
Strategy 

Update T Hague To provide an update on the 
Procurement Strategy

7 April 2020 Q3 2019/2020 Corporate 
Performance Monitoring Report

Monitoring B Box To review the report and in particular the 
Action Report.  Members are also asked 
to agree the actions outlined in the 
Action Report.

7 April 2020 Review of Standing Orders and 
Scrutiny and Executive 
Protocol

Review L Gore

98



Forthcoming items to be programmed

 Town Hall Bar Proposal – C Bamfield
 Annual Update Hunstanton Sailing Club (October 2020 – decision to be taken if update if presented by Hunstanton Sailing 

Club or the Borough Council’s representative)
 Persistent and Vexatious Customers
 Review of Election Process – date to be confirmed
 Recording of Meetings (referred from Full Council 28 November 2019)
 Freedom of the Borough (referred from Full Council 28 November 2019)
 Review of the Planning Sifting Panel (May 2020)

Post Evaluation Review of Projects

 Cinema, Corn Exchange

99


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	CP64 Annual Communications Update

	9 Q2 2019/2020 Corporate Performance Monitoring Report
	Q2 2019-20 CPP report
	Q2 2019-20 CPP Action
	Action 

	Q2 2019-20 CPP
	CPP


	10 Q2 2019/2020 Corporate Business Plan Monitoring Report
	Q2 CPP covering report
	Q2 2019-20 CBP Monitoring Report v0.2
	Corporate Performance Indicators
	The following corporate performance indicators have been introduced to capture key performance measures for each of the Council’s corporate priorities.


	11 Cabinet Forward Decisions List
	12 Panel Work Programme

